
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

September 03, 2019 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. August 06, 2019 Minutes 

2. August 20, 2019 Minutes 

  

Calendars 
3. September, October and November 2019 

  

Consent Agenda 
4. Motion to accept as information the August 2019 payables to include General Fund in the amount 

of $1,148,503.60, TSPLOST in the amount of $26,118.23, SPLOST in the amount of $62,150.63, 

General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $3,267.01 and the August 2019 financials. 

  

Time Certain 
 

11:00 AM Planning Commission 
  

Planning Commission New Business 
5. Bostwick Pawleys Investments, LLLP, is requesting conditional use approval to construct 

an accessory dwelling on 483.02 acres located at 1281 Mallory Road (Tax Parcel 017-

001A). 

6. Perco Equipment Rentals, LLC, is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment for 0.87 acres 

located at 1540 Greensboro Highway, from C2 (General Commercial) to C3 (Heavy 

Commercial) (Tax Parcel 035-108). 

7. Perco Equipment Rental, LLC, is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment for 2 acres located 

at 1542 Greensboro Highway, from C2 (General Commercial) to C3 (Heavy Commercial) 

(Tax Parcel 035-109A). 

8. Morgan County Planning and Development is requesting a text amendment to Chapter 7.1 

of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance related to accessory buildings. 

9. Morgan County Planning and Development is requesting a text amendment to Article 4 of 

the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance regarding farm tenant dwellings. 

  

New Business 
10. Broughton Rd Resurfacing - Rebid 

11. County Manager's Report 

12. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
13. Real Estate 

1



August 06, 2019 

 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Ronald H. Milton, Vice-Chair Philipp von Hanstein, Commissioners Andy A. 

Ainslie, Jr., Donald Harris and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry and County Clerk 

Leslie Brandt. 

 

Commissioner Milton called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

Commissioner Ainslie gave the invocation. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

Motion made by Commissioner von Hanstein, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda with 

the addition of Hazard Mitigation Plan Update under new business as item #17.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

Morgan Medical Center-FY 2019 Unaudited Financial Statements presented by Kyle Wilkerson, CFO and 

Ralph Castillo, CEO. 

 

MINUTES 

July 02, 2019 Minutes  

July 16, 2019 Minutes  

 

MOTION by Comm. Harris seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the minutes as presented.   

Unanimously Approved. 

 

CALENDARS 

County Manager, Adam Mestres reviewed the calendars for August, September and October 2019. 

                                        

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Motion to accept as information the July 2019 payables to include General Fund in the amount of 

$940,548.76, TSPLOST in the amount of $31,300.72, SPLOST in the amount of $216,041.38, 

General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $86,162.37 and the July 2019 financials. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to approve the consent agenda as presented.  

Unanimously Approved. 

 

RV HARDSHIP  

Ms. Stonecypher withdrew her request. 

 

2019-RES-005 2019 MILLAGE RATE RESOLUTION 

 

MOTION by Comm. Riden seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the 2019 Millage Rate Resolution 

(201-RES-005) as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

FY 2019 FINAL YEAR END BUDGET AMENDMENT 2



 2 

MOTION by Comm. Riden seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the FY2019 final year end 

budget amendment as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

FY 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

 

MOTION by Comm. Riden seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the FY2020 budget amendment 

as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

ACCG/BB&T LEASE PURCHASE RESOLUTION 

Resolution 2019-RES-006 allows for the County to move forward with a lease purchase agreement 

between all parties (County, BB&T and ACCG) in order to fund the mechanical updates and building 

improvements at the aquatics center, senior center/transit, public safety complex and creamery building. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the ACCG/BB&T lease purchase 

resolution (2019-RES-006) as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

NCRS LEASE EXTENSION 

The USDA lease agreement for the FSA building located at 205 E. Jefferson Street, Madison, GA 30650 

expires September 30, 2019.  The extension request from USDA if for October 1, 2019 through September 

30, 2022 in the amount of $14,479.01 annually. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Riden seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the USDA lease extension 

agreement as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

ROAD PAVEMENT EVALUATION PROPOSAL 

Proposals were received for technical and engineering services for pavement evaluation of Morgan County 

paved roads, including those of the municipal governments within Morgan County that equals 430 

centerline miles.  

 

MOTION by Comm. von Hanstein seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the road pavement evaluation 

proposal from Goodwyn Mills Cawood (GMC) and GMC’s team partner Infrastructure Management 

Services (IMS) in the amount of $93,362.00 as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

PLAINVIEW BAPTIST CHURCH IS REQUESTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO 

CONSTRUCT A PAVILION ON 2.86 ACRES LOCATED AT 1221 PLAINVIEW ROAD (TAX 

PARCEL 045-010). 

Plainview Baptist Church is requesting permission to construct a 32’ x 40’ picnic shelter. The proposed 

location meets the setbacks for the zoning district. The existing tree buffer is sufficient to meet the 

requirements of the ordinance. No additional parking will be required. The Planning Commission voted 

unanimously to recommend approval of the conditional use application for a pavilion at 1221 Plainview 

Road. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

John Williams spoke in favor of the request stating the pavilion was needed for outdoor activities and 

picnics. 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

3



 3 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Comm. von Hanstein seconded by Comm. Riden to approve the the conditional use request 

from Plainview Baptist Church to construct a pavilion on 2.86 acres located at 1221 Plainview Road (Tax 

Parcel 045-010 as presented with Comm. Ainslie voting in favor as well.  Comm. Harris recused himself 

due to a conflict of interest. Unanimously Approved. 

 

ROBERT WAYNE AIKEN IS REQUESTING A VARIANCE TO THE SIDE SETBACK FOR 1.02 

ACRES LOCATED AT 1531 CHILTON WOODS ROAD (TAX PARCEL 012-039A). 

Application request was withdrawn. 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT, ON BEHALF OF THE JOINT 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, IS REQUESTING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 4, 6 

AND 9 RELATED TO THE MXD1 ZONING DISTRICT. 

Senior Planner, Tara Cooner present a text amendment to article 4, 6 and 9 related to the MXD1 zoning 

district.  Cooner stated this text amendment is the result of a collaboration between the Planning Staffs for 

Newton, Walton and Morgan Counties and the attorney for the JDA. The intent of the requested text 

amendment is to provide common language for the 3 counties with land within the business park. The 

proposed language specifies what uses are allowed and where within the park, dimensional requirements, 

parking, streets and right-of-way, and building materials requirements. Currently, the language for the 

MXD1 zoning district, which is our designation for the Stanton Springs Business Park District, is in 2 

places:  The uses are listed in Article 4 and the regulations are in Article 6. The Planning staff are proposing 

to keep all of the language together in a new Article 9 to ensure our language matches that of Walton and 

Newton Counties. The only change proposed to the language. The term Director of Development Services 

is used for the Planning Director in Newton County. We would use the term Director of Planning & 

Development.  The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the text 

amendment for the MXD1 zoning district. Planning did receive comments from Robert McCauley 

yesterday. Staff reviewed his comments which were mainly questions about the counties involved and 

word preference. After review, Staff recommends no changes. Not only has our Planning Commission 

recommended it for approval, so have the Planning Commissions for Walton and Newton County and the 

Commissioners for both Walton and Newton are hearing this application today as well. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED PROPONENTS  

Alan Verner spoke in favor of the requested text amendment. 

 

CHAIRMAN MILTON ALLOWED OPPONENTS TO SPEAK 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the text amendment to article 4, 6 

and 9 related to the MXD1 zoning district as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT FIRE TRUCK 

Procurement Director, Mark Williams updated the Board on the status of fire truck replacement.  Williams 

stated proposals would be ready for review at the next meeting. 

 

 

4



 4 

HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE 

In order to comply with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, Morgan County is required to update its 

Hazard Mitigation Plan every five years.  FEMA reimburses the County for 75% of the total cost and the 

County is responsible for 25%, but that cost can be 0% with necessary in-kind services.  The cost of the 

plan update is $16,000.  FEMA will reimburse the County $12,000. 

 

MOTION by Comm. von Hanstein seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Update as presented.   Unanimously Approved. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER'S REPORT 

County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's current 

projects and/or issues.  (COPY:  Miscellaneous Book) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments were made by: 

Paula Sellers, Morgan County Resident 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to exit regular session.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – POTENTIAL LITIGATION 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie seconded by Comm. Riden to enter Executive Session to discuss potential 

litigation. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in Executive Session Legal Requirement 

Book). 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to exit Executive Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to enter Regular Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously Approved.  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Ronald H. Milton, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

5



  

6



August 20, 2019 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET THIS 

DAY IN REGULAR SESSION. 

 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Ronald H. Milton, Vice-Chair Philipp von Hanstein, Commissioners Andy A. 

Ainslie, Jr., Donald Harris and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres and County Clerk Leslie Brandt. 

 

Commissioner Milton called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Commissioner Ainslie gave the invocation. 

  

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve agenda as 

presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PROPERTY TO BE DECLARED SURPLUS 

 

 

Motion by Comm. von Hanstein, Seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the items to be declared surplus 

and sold/disposed as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING ROOF REPLACEMENT 

7



Two bids were received for the administration building roof replacement.  After review by the Project 

Engineer and the County review team, the recommendation is to proceed with Skyline Construction 

Services, Inc. for $286,440.00. 

 

Motion by Comm. Harris, Seconded by Comm. Ainslie to approve the contract with Skyline Construction 

Services for the roof replacement of the Administrative Building for $286,440.00 as presented. 

Unanimously Approved. 

 

ENERGY SERVICES CONTRACT 

The board previously approved the proposed energy savings project prepared by Schneider Electric and 

at the last Board meeting approved the financing.  For the project to begin, the contract with Schneider 

Electric must be approved and executed.   

 

Motion by Comm. von Hanstein, Seconded by Comm. Harris to approve the Energy Services Contract 

with Schneider Electric as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT FIRE TRUCK 

Fire Chief, Jeff Stone presented the Board with quotes for replacement of a fire truck that was totaled in 

December 2018.  Four dealers submitted quotes, each quoting a custom fire truck and a commercial fire 

truck.  Stone stated the review committee recommends purchasing the Custom HME from Triton ERV for 

$344,392.00.  The custom truck would come with an overall longer/better warranty and a longer lifespan 

than the commercial truck.  Stone expressed the word custom is not meant to be high end or fancier, but 

simply means purpose built. 

 

The Board expressed concern over the extra cost for the custom truck and whether or not it was necessary. 

 

Stone stated both commercial or custom trucks meet the need to perform their job.  However, the custom 

truck would carry a longer lifespan and save the County money in the long run. 

 

Motion by Comm. Riden, Seconded by Comm. von Hanstein to approve the quote for the commercial 

Pierce from Ten-8 for $288,751.00. Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

COMMISSIONER LIAISON REPORTS 

Commissioners gave updates on Liaison assignments. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to enter Regular Session.  Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

MOTION by Comm. Ainslie, seconded by Comm. Riden to adjourn.  Unanimously Approved.  

 

 

 

 

8



_____________________________ 

Ronald H. Milton, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1281 Mallory Road   

Property tax parcel: 017-001A  

Acreage: 483.02 acres  

Applicant: Bostwick Pawleys Investments LLLP 

Applicant’s Agent: De Little   

Property Owner: Bostwick Pawleys Investments LLLP  

Existing Use: Hunting land with single family dwelling 

Proposed Use: Hunting land with Primary dwelling and Accessory dwelling  

 

Summary 

        
Bostwick Pawley 

Investment LLLP is 

requesting 

conditional use 

approval for an 

accessory dwelling 

on 483 acres 

located at 1281 

Mallory Road. 

 

The property is 

used for hunting 

land and is in the 

Conservation Use 

tax abatement 

program. Road 

frontage exists on 

Mallory Road, 

Bostwick Highway 

and Riden Road. 

The property 

contains one 

dwelling, one barn 

and a pavilion with 

a dock (on the 

northernmost 

pond). 

 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Accessory Dwelling 

        

22



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The barn and dwelling are located off 

Mallory Road. The 1281 address is 

assigned to the dwelling. The 

applicant describes the dwelling as a 

hunting cabin. According to the Tax 

Assessors, the dwelling was 

constructed in 1992 and is listed at 

1,189 heated square feet.  

 

The minimum heated square footage 

required for the AG zoning district is 

800 square feet. Therefore, the 

existing dwelling meets the definition 

for a primary dwelling. 

 

A view of the 

house and barn 

located off 

Mallory Road. 

The applicant 

has indicated in 

submitted 

supplemental 

documentation 

that the proposed 

accessory 

dwelling will be 

located in the 

curve of the trees 

shown to the 

right of the 

existing 

structures. The 

new driveway is 

proposed to 

follow the right 

side of the wheat 

field. See 

attached 

document. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The proposed dwelling is 2,394 heated square feet and 3,250 square feet total. The heated square 

footage is more than double that of the existing dwelling. The ordinance limits an accessory dwelling to 

800 heated square feet and 1,000 square feet total. See Chapter 7.2 attached. See also house plans 

attached. 

 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance: 

1. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use to an acceptable level; 

2. Vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets will not be substantially hindered 

or endangered; 

3. Off-street parking and loading, and the entrance to and exit from such parking and loading, will 

be adequate in terms of location, amount and design to service the use; 

4. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use; 

5. Granting the request would not be an illogical extension of a use which would introduce  

damaging volumes of (1) agricultural, (2) commercial, (3) industrial, or (4) high density 

apartment use into a stable neighborhood of well-maintained single family homes, and likely 

24



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

lead to decreasing surrounding property values, neighborhood deterioration, spreading of 

blight, and additional requests of a similar nature which would expand the problem; 

6. Granting the request would not lead to congestion, noise and traffic hazards or overload public 

facilities, current or planned; 

7. Granting the request would conform to the general expectation for the area population growth 

and distribution according to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

8. Granting the request would not lead to a major negative change in existing (1) levels of public 

service, (2) government employees or (3) fiscal stability; 

9. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening wedge 

for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 

Staff Comments 

        
When the applicant approached Staff about placing a second home on the property, Staff suggested 

that the minimum required 5 acres be split from the 483 acres to construct the new house. The 

applicant briefly considered this option but decided to pursue a conditional use instead.  

 

Based on discussions related to a previous accessory dwelling application, Staff consulted The Chief Tax 

Appraiser regarding how property splits affect conservation use. Guy Rodgers stated that 5 acres can be 

removed, even if it is deeded to the same owner, without creating a breach of the conservation use 

covenant. However, the entire 5 acres will be removed from the covenant instead of the typical 2 acres 

removed for a residence.   

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



Chapter 7.2   Accessory Dwellings 

 

One accessory dwelling unit is permitted as subordinate to an existing single family dwelling provided the 

following requirements are met: 

 

• An accessory dwelling shall be constructed after the principal dwelling has received a Certificate 

of Occupancy. This applies to accessory dwellings constructed in accessory buildings, including 

agricultural structures.  

• The accessory dwelling unit shall be owned by the same person as the principal dwelling.  

• No more than one accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a single deeded lot in conjunction 

with the principal dwelling unit. An accessory dwelling may be in a freestanding building, a 

basement or above a garage. Even if included within the principal dwelling, there shall be only 

one accessory dwelling per lot. Each accessory dwelling shall have an exterior entrance that 

does not require the accessory dwelling resident to access the unit through the primary dwelling. 

• Accessory dwelling units shall not be subdivided or otherwise segregated in ownership from the 

principal dwelling unit without meeting the requirements associated with the zoning district 

classification. 

• The accessory dwelling shall comply with all requirements of the county health department for on-

site sewerage and well regulations.  

• Accessory dwelling units shall be a minimum of three hundred (300) square feet and a maximum 

of eight hundred (800) square feet for heated square footage and a maximum of 1000 square feet 

total (including unheated square footage under roof, such as porches and carports). Accessory 

dwelling units located in accessory buildings are limited to 800 square feet. 

• Accessory dwellings shall not have basements. Crawlspace or slab foundations are allowed. 

• An accessory dwelling unit shall not be served by a driveway separate from that serving the 

principal dwelling. 

• Accessory dwellings shall adhere to the parking and setback requirements and height restrictions 

for the district in which they are to be located. 

• If located in a building detached from the principal building or dwelling, an accessory dwelling 

shall not be closer than twenty (20) feet to the principal building or dwelling.  

• Manufactured homes may not be used as accessory dwellings. 

• Accessory dwellings shall be a Conditional Use in all zoning districts where single family 

detached homes are allowed. If an existing structure meets or exceeds the maximum square 

footage specified above and an additional dwelling exceeding the maximum square footage for 

an Accessory Dwelling is desired, the property must be split to allow for a second principal 

dwelling, or a Variance must be requested in addition to the Conditional Use.   

 

32



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1540 and 1542 Greensboro Road  

Property tax parcel: 035-108 and 035-109A  

Acreage: 8.62  

Applicant: Perco Equipment Rental LLC  

Applicant’s Agent: Kyle Ward   

Property Owner: Charles Bradley 

Existing Zoning: C2 (General Commercial) 

Proposed Zoning: C3 (Heavy Commercial)  

 

Summary 

        
Perco Equipment Rentals, LLC is 

requesting zoning map 

amendments for 1540 

Greensboro Road and 1542 

Greensboro Road, from General 

Commercial (C2) to Heavy 

Commercial (C3). The applicant 

intends to use the properties for 

an equipment rental and sales 

business. The front property, 

1540 Greensboro Highway, is 

currently occupied by Charles 

Bradley’s sodablasting business 

and an empty storefront. The 

storefront has contained 

numerous businesses, including a 

coupe of restaurants, a 

consignment shop and most 

recently, an engraving shop. The 

rear parcel, 1542 Greensboro 

Road, has been used by Mr. 

Bradley for storage. 

 

Petition for:  Zoning Map Amendment  

        

33



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The subject Properties are 

zoned C2 – General 

Commercial.  The properties 

back up to the railroad spur 

for Georgia Pacific and are 

adjacent to Bulldog Steel. 

“Rental Store” is a permitted 

use in C3 and is only allowed 

in C3. The ordinance does 

not specify small equipment 

sales, but heavy equipment 

sales in permitted in C3 and 

only in C3. Therefore, Staff 

recommended to the 

applicant that the current C2 

designation would not be 

appropriate for the intended 

business and that C3 

designation would be 

necessary. 

 
A wider 
aerial view 
shows 
Bulldog 
Steel to the 
southeast. 
Residences 
are located 
to the 
northwest. 
A single 
residence 
on a farm is 
across the 
highway. 
The 
highway 
sees heavy 
truck traffic 
due to 
Georgia 
Pacific. 

Bulldog 

Steel 

International 

Paper 

34



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

These properties have been the subject of several zoning action requests. Rather than copying pages of 

text from past meetings, a summary of the meeting results is below: 

 

September 24, 1998 

Paul Christian and Penny Booth Christian requested a zoning map amendment for 1540 Greensboro 

Highway, from AR to C2. The applicant’s intent was to open a gas station and they stated that they had 

found evidence that the property was zoned C3 at one time. Staff suggested that, if approved, the 

zoning should be conditional and limit the use of the property to a convenience store, grill or gas station. 

The applicant’s protested and stated that they also wanted a sporting goods store and produce market. 

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the map amendment request to allow the 

zoning change to C2 with conditions that the use be limited to convenience store, grill, gas station, 

sporting goods and produce. Unhappy with the limitations, the applicants ask to withdraw their 

application to research options. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to withdraw the motion. 

After a discussion about surrounding uses, the Planning Commission amended their motion to table the 

application. The application was not presented to the Board of Commissioners. Staff found no evidence 

that the application was brought back to the Planning Commission. (Staff note:  the property had been 

zoned AR since the inception of zoning in 1986. Perhaps the applicants were confused:  the adjacent 

property where Bulldog Steel is currently located was rezoned to C3 in 1994.) 

 

January 22, 2004 

Taking advantage of a huge lapse in Staff research, Paul Christian requested a map amendment for both 

properties, from C2 to C3. (Note that both properties were actually still zoned AR. The 1998 request was 

only for one property and was not approved by the BOC.) The Planning Commission was under the 

impression that the 1998 rezoning with conditions was approved, so they voted 6:2 to approve the 

rezoning of both properties to C3 with no conditions. The map amendments were approved by the 

Board of Commissioners. 

 

June 6, 2006 

The new Zoning Atlas is adopted for Morgan County. When approved, 1540 Greensboro Road is zoned 

C2. 1542 Greensboro Road is zoned AR.  

 

August 22, 2013 

Charles Bradley requested a zoning map amendment for 1542 Greensboro Highway, from AR to C2. The 

Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval. The Board of Commissioners 

approved the map amendment. 

 

The owner has submitted two other zoning action applications: 

September 28, 2006 – Charles Bradley requested Conditional Use approval to operate an agriculture- 

oriented business for the fabrication and repair of ag equipment. Approved. 

February 25, 2010 – Charles Bradley requested a text amendment to allow non-mass custom fabrication 

in conjunction with welding repair services. Approved. 

35



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

Also of interest:  In March of 2011, Bulldog Steel successfully rezoned their property at 1580 from C3 to 

I2. So even when the C3 designation was removed for these two parcels during the selective rezoning of 

properties for the 2006 Atlas, heavy commercial zoning designation was left on the adjacent parcel. 

 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
(Please note that the criteria below are bulleted in the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, Section 19.3.1. 

They are numbered here for ease of use.  

1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses and Districts:  Existing uses and use districts of surrounding 
and nearby properties, whether the proposed use district is suitable in light of such existing uses 
and use districts of surrounding and nearby properties, and whether the proposal will adversely 
affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby properties.  

2. Property Value:  The existing value of the property contained in the petition under the existing 

use district classification, the extent to which the property value of the subject property is 

diminished by the existing use district classification, and whether the subject property has a 

reasonable economic use under the current use district.  

3. Suitability:  The suitability of the subject property under the existing use district classification, 

and the suitability of the subject property under the proposed use district classification.  

4. Vacancy and Marketing:  The length of time the property has been vacant or unused as currently 

used under the current use district classification; and any efforts taken by the property owner(s) 

to use the property or sell the property under the existing use district classification.  

5. Evidence of Need:  The amount of undeveloped land in the general area affected which has the 

same use district classification as the map change requested. It shall be the duty of the applicant 

to carry the burden of proof that the proposed application promotes public health, safety, 

morality or general welfare.  

6. Public Facilities Impacts:  Whether the proposal will result in a use, which will or could cause an 

excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, schools, parks 

or other public facilities and services.  

7. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan:  Whether the proposal is in conformity with the policy 

and intent of the locally adopted comprehensive plan.  

8. Other Conditions:  Whether there are any other existing or changing conditions affecting the use 

and development of the property that give supporting grounds for either approval or 

disapproval of the proposal.  

 

Staff Comments 

        
These properties have been zoned C3 in the past but were changed by Staff for the 2006 Zoning Atlas. 

Precedent must be considered. 

 

36



37



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1540 and 1542 Greensboro Road  

Property tax parcel: 035-108 and 035-109A  

Acreage: 8.62  

Applicant: Perco Equipment Rental LLC  

Applicant’s Agent: Kyle Ward   

Property Owner: Charles Bradley 

Existing Zoning: C2 (General Commercial) 

Proposed Zoning: C3 (Heavy Commercial)  

 

Summary 

        
Perco Equipment Rentals, LLC is 

requesting zoning map 

amendments for 1540 

Greensboro Road and 1542 

Greensboro Road, from General 

Commercial (C2) to Heavy 

Commercial (C3). The applicant 

intends to use the properties for 

an equipment rental and sales 

business. The front property, 

1540 Greensboro Highway, is 

currently occupied by Charles 

Bradley’s sodablasting business 

and an empty storefront. The 

storefront has contained 

numerous businesses, including a 

coupe of restaurants, a 

consignment shop and most 

recently, an engraving shop. The 

rear parcel, 1542 Greensboro 

Road, has been used by Mr. 

Bradley for storage. 

 

Petition for:  Zoning Map Amendment  

        

38



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

The subject Properties are 

zoned C2 – General 

Commercial.  The properties 

back up to the railroad spur 

for Georgia Pacific and are 

adjacent to Bulldog Steel. 

“Rental Store” is a permitted 

use in C3 and is only allowed 

in C3. The ordinance does 

not specify small equipment 

sales, but heavy equipment 

sales in permitted in C3 and 

only in C3. Therefore, Staff 

recommended to the 

applicant that the current C2 

designation would not be 

appropriate for the intended 

business and that C3 

designation would be 

necessary. 

 
A wider 
aerial view 
shows 
Bulldog 
Steel to the 
southeast. 
Residences 
are located 
to the 
northwest. 
A single 
residence 
on a farm is 
across the 
highway. 
The 
highway 
sees heavy 
truck traffic 
due to 
Georgia 
Pacific. 

Bulldog 

Steel 

International 

Paper 

39



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

These properties have been the subject of several zoning action requests. Rather than copying pages of 

text from past meetings, a summary of the meeting results is below: 

 

September 24, 1998 

Paul Christian and Penny Booth Christian requested a zoning map amendment for 1540 Greensboro 

Highway, from AR to C2. The applicant’s intent was to open a gas station and they stated that they had 

found evidence that the property was zoned C3 at one time. Staff suggested that, if approved, the 

zoning should be conditional and limit the use of the property to a convenience store, grill or gas station. 

The applicant’s protested and stated that they also wanted a sporting goods store and produce market. 

The Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the map amendment request to allow the 

zoning change to C2 with conditions that the use be limited to convenience store, grill, gas station, 

sporting goods and produce. Unhappy with the limitations, the applicants ask to withdraw their 

application to research options. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to withdraw the motion. 

After a discussion about surrounding uses, the Planning Commission amended their motion to table the 

application. The application was not presented to the Board of Commissioners. Staff found no evidence 

that the application was brought back to the Planning Commission. (Staff note:  the property had been 

zoned AR since the inception of zoning in 1986. Perhaps the applicants were confused:  the adjacent 

property where Bulldog Steel is currently located was rezoned to C3 in 1994.) 

 

January 22, 2004 

Taking advantage of a huge lapse in Staff research, Paul Christian requested a map amendment for both 

properties, from C2 to C3. (Note that both properties were actually still zoned AR. The 1998 request was 

only for one property and was not approved by the BOC.) The Planning Commission was under the 

impression that the 1998 rezoning with conditions was approved, so they voted 6:2 to approve the 

rezoning of both properties to C3 with no conditions. The map amendments were approved by the 

Board of Commissioners. 

 

June 6, 2006 

The new Zoning Atlas is adopted for Morgan County. When approved, 1540 Greensboro Road is zoned 

C2. 1542 Greensboro Road is zoned AR.  

 

August 22, 2013 

Charles Bradley requested a zoning map amendment for 1542 Greensboro Highway, from AR to C2. The 

Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval. The Board of Commissioners 

approved the map amendment. 

 

The owner has submitted two other zoning action applications: 

September 28, 2006 – Charles Bradley requested Conditional Use approval to operate an agriculture- 

oriented business for the fabrication and repair of ag equipment. Approved. 

February 25, 2010 – Charles Bradley requested a text amendment to allow non-mass custom fabrication 

in conjunction with welding repair services. Approved. 

40



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

Also of interest:  In March of 2011, Bulldog Steel successfully rezoned their property at 1580 from C3 to 

I2. So even when the C3 designation was removed for these two parcels during the selective rezoning of 

properties for the 2006 Atlas, heavy commercial zoning designation was left on the adjacent parcel. 

 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
(Please note that the criteria below are bulleted in the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, Section 19.3.1. 

They are numbered here for ease of use.  

1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses and Districts:  Existing uses and use districts of surrounding 
and nearby properties, whether the proposed use district is suitable in light of such existing uses 
and use districts of surrounding and nearby properties, and whether the proposal will adversely 
affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby properties.  

2. Property Value:  The existing value of the property contained in the petition under the existing 

use district classification, the extent to which the property value of the subject property is 

diminished by the existing use district classification, and whether the subject property has a 

reasonable economic use under the current use district.  

3. Suitability:  The suitability of the subject property under the existing use district classification, 

and the suitability of the subject property under the proposed use district classification.  

4. Vacancy and Marketing:  The length of time the property has been vacant or unused as currently 

used under the current use district classification; and any efforts taken by the property owner(s) 

to use the property or sell the property under the existing use district classification.  

5. Evidence of Need:  The amount of undeveloped land in the general area affected which has the 

same use district classification as the map change requested. It shall be the duty of the applicant 

to carry the burden of proof that the proposed application promotes public health, safety, 

morality or general welfare.  

6. Public Facilities Impacts:  Whether the proposal will result in a use, which will or could cause an 

excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, schools, parks 

or other public facilities and services.  

7. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan:  Whether the proposal is in conformity with the policy 

and intent of the locally adopted comprehensive plan.  

8. Other Conditions:  Whether there are any other existing or changing conditions affecting the use 

and development of the property that give supporting grounds for either approval or 

disapproval of the proposal.  

 

Staff Comments 

        
These properties have been zoned C3 in the past but were changed by Staff for the 2006 Zoning Atlas. 

Precedent must be considered. 

 

41



42



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Applicant: Morgan County Planning & Development 

Applicant’s Agent: N/A   

Zoning Ordinance: Article 7  Regulations for Specific Uses 

  

Summary 

        
The language for Accessory Buildings was changed in April of this year, as well as the language for 

Accessory Dwellings. One of the issues addressed in both ordinances was requests to use accessory 

buildings as accessory dwellings. Since that language change, Planning & Development has had an 

increase in requests to use accessory buildings as primary dwellings. When told that that an accessory 

dwelling cannot be constructed first, the potential applicants are asking to increase the square footage 

to make the dwelling the primary residence. For example, we just had a request for a 1,000 square foot 

home in a 3,000 square foot metal building (leaving 2,000 square feet of storage space). The current 

language does not permit the primary dwelling to be in an accessory building.   

Planning has also seen an increase in people wanting to use alternative structures as storage buildings or 

for other uses, including offices and she-sheds. The most frequently asked about type of structure is a 

shipping container. Planning has allowed shipping containers to be used on two properties in the county 

and have received numerous negative comments on the one that is visible from the road. Requests have 

been received to use old buses or recreational vehicles for storage and more recently, to use an old 

construction trailer as a she-shed. 

Current and Proposed Language 

        
See attached for proposed language changes to Chapter 7.1. 

Staff Comments 

        
Regarding dwellings, the proposed text closes loopholes that Staff knew were inevitable when the text 

was changed earlier this year. Regarding the use of alternative structures for accessory buildings, the 

proposed text is an effort to control unsightly and sometimes unsafe structures.  

Petition for:  Text Amendment 

        

43



Chapter 7.1   Accessory Buildings 

 

All accessory buildings must meet the following requirements: 

 

• Where an accessory building is attached to the principle building, a substantial part of one wall of 

the accessory building shall be an integral part of the principal building or such accessory building 

shall be attached to the principal building in a substantial manner by a roof, and therefore meet 

requirements applicable to the principle use. 

• A detached accessory building shall not be closer than twenty (20) feet to the principal building or 

use. 

• A detached accessory building shall adhere to the setback requirements for the district in which it 

is built.  

• A detached accessory building shall not be more than two (2) stories high. 

• Manufactured homes, mobile homes, construction trailers, recreational vehicles, buses, shipping 

containers, portable storage containers, or storage trailers may not be used as accessory 

buildings in a zoning district. 

• Accessory buildings shall be constructed After the principal building is constructed except for 

structures used for agricultural purposes within the AG and AR Zoning Districts with 5 acres or 

more. 

• Living quarters within an accessory building that meet or exceed the minimum heated square 

footage per the zoning district shall be considered the primary dwelling. Living quarters located 

within accessory buildings, constructed after the primary dwelling, must meet the definition of an 

accessory dwelling found in Article 3 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance and shall not 

exceed 800 square feet. Living quarters in accessory buildings shall be constructed after the 

principal dwelling has received a Certificate of Occupancy. No living quarters shall be constructed 

in an accessory building before the primary dwelling has received a Certificate of Occupancy. 

• Plans required for accessory buildings may be hand drawn to scale if under 2500 square feet. 

Accessory buildings between 2501 square feet and 5000 square feet must be drawn to scale with 

a CAD program or by a drafting professional. Accessory buildings over 5001 square feet must be 

professionally drawn and stamped by an architect or engineer. 

 

44



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Applicant: Morgan County Planning & Development 

Applicant’s Agent: N/A   

Zoning Ordinance: Article 4  Table 4.1  Permitted and Conditional Uses by Zoning District 

  

Summary 

        
As part of Morgan County’s support for agriculture, the Zoning Ordinance allows for farm tenant 

dwellings. Multiple farm tenant dwellings can be located on a farm. The main impetus for the language 

was dairies, where around-the-clock milking required farm workers to be up at odd hours. Dairy farmers 

sometimes found it hard to keep workers without on-site living arrangements. In the last decade, the 

only farm tenant dwellings requested in Morgan County have been related to Godfrey Dairy.  

Morgan County Planning and Development has received several requests (about a half dozen) recently 

for farm help. With the exception of one request, there was no visible farm activity on the properties. It 

is highly suspected that these requests are an attempt to place multiple dwellings (always manufactured 

homes) on a single property for rental purposes.  

With dairies on the decline and the desire for rental property on the rise, Planning is suggesting that 

“Dwelling, Tenant for farm workers” be changed from Permitted in AG and AR zoning districts to 

Conditional in AG and AR zoning districts. This will provide farmers with a mechanism to offer on-site 

housing but will hopefully deter those who would wish to use the concession for the rental market. 

Current and Proposed Language 

        
 

Use Description AG AR 

Dwelling, Tenant,  for farm workers full time employees of working farms 

when located on the same lot or tract of land as the principal residence, on 

the basis of one residential structure per minimum allowable lot acreage in 

addition to the minimum lot area required for the principal residence, and 

subject to all dimensional requirements 

P C P C 

 

Article 3 Definitions: 

Working Farm:  A farm whose agricultural lands and buildings are in active use for crop production 

and/or the raising of livestock that requires full time supervision or requires employees to be present 

during non-regular working hours and is the primary source of income for the property owner. 

Petition for:  Text Amendment 

        

45



46



47



48



49


	Top
	1. August 06, 2019 Minutes
	08-06-2019 Regular Minutes - DRAFT

	2. August 20, 2019 Minutes
	08-20-2019 BOC Minutes -DRAFT

	3. September, October and November 2019
	Sept-Nov 2019 Calendars

	4. August 2019 Financials
	Aug. 2019 Financials

	5. Bostwick Pawley conditional use
	staffreport.August.BostwickPawley.CU

	6. Perco Rezoning 035-108
	staffreport.August.Perco.Rezone(2)

	7. Perco rezoning 035-109A
	staffreport.August.Perco.Rezone(2)

	8. Text Amendment for Accessory Buildings
	staffreport.August.MC.TA.AccBuildings

	9. Text amendment Farm Tenant Dwellings
	August.MC.TA.Art4 w PC amend

	10. Broughton Rd Resurfacing - Rebid
	Broughton Rd Resurfacing

	11. County Manager's Report
	12. Public Comments on Agenda Items
	13. Real Estate
	Bottom

